1986

Wendy Marie Christensen Rawlings v. Mark Douglas Weiner : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT

Respondent filed her Cross-Appeal after Plaintiff appealed the Order on Order to Show Cause issued by the First District Court of Box Elder County. Respondent is entitled to cross-appeal pursuant to Rule 4(d) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals.

NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

Defendant filed an Order to Show Cause requesting the Court to modify the Decree of Divorce entered in the above-entitled action awarding Defendant custody of the minor children of the parties. Plaintiff objected on the basis of lack of jurisdiction of the District Court for Box Elder County and requested the Court to transfer all matters related to custody and visitation to the State of Washington, where the children of the parties were residing. The Trial Court denied all motions of Plaintiff to transfer jurisdiction and proceeded with the Hearing on Defendant's Order to Show Cause, subsequently modifying the Divorce Decree allowing joint custody, with Plaintiff maintaining primary physical custody of the children. Defendant appealed the Order of the Court which was subsequently dismissed for lack of prosecution by Defendant. Plaintiff cross-appealed on the basis of

jurisdiction and is requesting the Court of Appeals to rule on the issue of jurisdiction.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Respondent presents one issue to be determined by the Court of Appeals, to-wit: Does the First District Court in and for Box Elder County, State of Utah, have jurisdiction pursuant to the Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, UCA 78-45c-1, et. seq., in order to hear Defendant's request to modify the Decree of Divorce entered in the Action.

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, ORDINANCES, RULES, OR REGULATIONS

The issue raised by Respondent in this Appeal is determined solely by the Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, SUPRA, and specifically UCA 78-45c-3 and UCA 78-45c-7.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Nature of the Case.

The Action appealed herein is the Trial Court's Order on Order to Show Cause dealing with the Defendant's request to modify the Decree of Divorce entered in the Action granting

Defendant custody of the minor children of the parties.

2. Course of Proceedings.

Defendant/ Appellant, Mark Weiner, on or about October 28, 1985, filed and served on Plaintiff/Respondent an Order to Show Cause requesting, among other things, that the Decree of Divorce entered in this action be modified to award custody of the minor children of the parties to Defendant. Plaintiff, by and through counsel, filed a Motion for Change of Jurisdiction on or about November 15, 1985. Plaintiff was served with the Order to Show Cause on or about December 5, 1985.

Plaintiff's Motion for Change of Jurisdiction was denied, whereafter Plaintiff filed a Motion to Partially Set Aside the Memorandum Decision regarding the Court's decision on jurisdiction, which was also denied. Thereafter, Plaintiff filed a Petition to Appeal an Interlocutory Order in the Supreme Court of Utah, Case No. 860116, which Petition was also denied.

The hearing on Defendant's Order to Show Cause was held in the District Court on May 21, 22 and 26, 1986, and the Order of the Court was entered October 21, 1986. The copy of the Order on Order to Show Cause is attached to Plaintiff/Respondent's Docketing Statement. Defendant/ Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal on or about November 18, 1986, and Respondent filed a Notice of Cross Appeal on or

jurisdiction issue. Defendant's Appeal was dismissed by Order of the Honorable Russell W. Bench, Judge, for failure to take action as is required by the rules of the Utah Court of Appeals failing to file a docketing statement and a request for transcript of certification and no transcript would be requested.

3. Disposition at Trial Court.

At the Order to Show Cause Hearing held in the District Court on May 21, 22, and 26, 1986, the trial judge modified the Decree of Divorce granting the parties joint custody, leaving primary physical custody with Plaintiff and further revising and defining visitation and other matters.

4. Statement of Facts.

Plaintiff and Defendant were married on or about August, 1974, and divorced on May 18, 1982. Plaintiff was awarded custody of the five minor children of the parties pursuant to the Decree of Divorce entered in Box Elder County, Civil No. 16868, with Defendant being awarded visitation.

Plaintiff married Mark Rawlings on or about December 23, 1982. On or about June 1, 1984, Plaintiff and her new husband, together with the minor children of the parties, moved to Auburn, Washington, in the Seattle area, where

Mark Rawlings had accepted employment as an engineer with Boeing. An Order to Show Cause hearing was held in the Box Elder District Court on or about October 23, 1984, to modify the Divorce Decree regarding visitation since Defendant could no longer exercise weekend visitation rights. The Court's Order modifying the Divorce Decree was entered on or about December 17, 1984.

On or about April 19, 1985, a Shelter Care Hearing was held in the Superior Court of the State of Washington in and for King County, Juvenile Department, No. 85-7-00307, et seq, before Court Commissioner Steven M. Gaddis. The Washington Court assumed emergency jurisdiction pursuant to the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act (hereinafter "UCCJA") to determine allegations of child abuse filed by Plaintiff against Defendant. At the Shelter Care hearing, the Washington Court noted that it had assumed emergency jurisdiction only and that if it appeared that further litigation in Washington would be necessary to determine custody and visitation matters, the question of jurisdiction needed to be reviewed in order to determine which court, Washington or Utah, had proper jurisdiction to hear matters relating to care, custody and visitation of the children. The Washington Court recommended that Counsel prepare the appropriate motions to transfer jurisdiction to Washington and indicated that he would confer with the Utah Court on that matter. Each of the parties in this action was present at the

Shelter Care Hearing and subsequent matters in Washington and was represented by counsel at all hearings before the Washington Court.

On or about November 15, 1985, Plaintiff filed in the Superior Court of the State of Washington for King County, No. 85-3-04844-03, her "Motion for Transfer of Jurisdiction from Utah to Washington" pursuant to Washington's version of the UCCJA. On or about November 15, 1985, Plaintiff's Utah attorney filed a "Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Motion for Change of Jurisdiction" with the Utah Court to assist the Utah Court, the Honorable Omer J. Call, in making a determination regarding jurisdiction at such time as Judge Call would be contacted by the Washington Court to confer regarding jurisdiction.

On or about December 4, 1985, Defendant, acting pro se, had served on Plaintiff and filed in the Utah action, among other things, a Motion for Order to Show Cause requesting that he be awarded by the Utah Court care, custody and control of the minor children of the parties. At that time, no determination had been made by either Court regarding jurisdiction to hear such matters. Immediately thereafter, Plaintiff's Utah Counsel formally filed with the Box Elder District Court a "Motion for Change of Jurisdiction" pursuant to the Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, Sec. 78-45c-1, et. seq., Utah Code Annotated (hereinafter "U.C.A."). By the time the Order to Show Cause had been

served on Plaintiff, the children had resided in Washington for approximately eighteen (18) months. It had been more than thirteen (13) months since the Utah Court had heard any matters related to the action, that hearing being related to visitation due to the change of residence for the children.

On or about December 23, 1985, apparently after the Washington Court had communicated by telephone with Judge Call, the Utah Court, by VeNoy Christoffersen, District Judge, entered a Memorandum Decision, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by reference, denying Plaintiff's Motion for Change of Jurisdiction and stating as the reason for denying Plaintiff's Motion for Change of Jurisdiction as, "since Washington has declined to take jurisdiction." Thereafter, or on or about January 13, 1986, the Washington Court entered its Order Declining Jurisdiction, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference, stating, among other things, "that upon communication with [the Box Elder County Court] it [meaning Box Elder] has elected and determined to continue exercising sole and exclusive child custody jurisdiction."

Plaintiff thereafter filed a motion to partially strike the Utah Memorandum Decision of December 23, 1985, indicating to Judge Christoffersen an apparent mistake or miscommunication in that the only reason Washington had declined jurisdiction was because Utah had refused to

relinquish jurisdiction, not that Washington did not want to exercise jurisdiction, and pointing out to the Court again that Utah did not have jurisdiction to hear Defendant's request for change of custody. Plaintiff's "Motion to Partially Strike Memorandum Decision" was denied by the Court, the Honorable Omer J. Call, the Honorable VeNoy Christoffersen concurring, on or about March 1986, again refusing to grant Plaintiff's Motion for Change of Jurisdiction.

The matter came before the Court on May 21, 22, and 26, 1986 for determination on Defendant's request for change of custody. At the beginning of the trial, Plaintiff objected to the proceeding based on the Court's lack of jurisdiction, which objection was overruled. Plaintiff excepted to the Court's refusal to grant the objection, which exception was noted by the Court. Plaintiff renewed the objection at various times throughout the hearing. Following the hearing, the District Court modified the Decree granting Defendant joint custody, but leaving physical custody of the children with Plaintiff and modifying and reducing visitation.

The Order on Order to Show Cause was signed by the Court on October 21, 1986, whereafter Defendant appealed to the Supreme Court and Plaintiff Cross Appealed based on jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Plaintiff claims that the District Court had no jurisdiction to hear any matters regarding custody of the children pursuant to the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, Section 78-45c-1, et. seq., Utah Code Annotated, in that the children of the parties had been out of the State of Utah almost two years by the time of the hearing held on May 21, 22, and 26, 1986, and because Utah is an inconvenient forum. Because the District Court has no jurisdiction, any subsequent Order of the Court should be set aside with an Order directing the District Court to defer jurisdiction to the State of Washington.

ARGUMENTS

I

WASHINGTON HAS BEEN AND IS READY, WILLING AND ABLE TO ASSUME JURISDICTION OVER CUSTODY AND VISITATION MATTERS IN THIS ACTION AND IS THE ONLY PROPER STATE TO EXERCISE JURISDICTION OVER CUSTODY AND VISITATION

The Superior Court for King County, State of Washington, assumed temporary emergency jurisdiction over this matter in the State of Washington in or about March, 1985. A Shelter Care hearing was held on or about April 19, 1985, wherein the Washington Court, by and through the Honorable Stephen M. Gaddis, Commissioner, addressed the issue of jurisdiction between Washington and Utah, among other things. Commissioner Gaddis stated at the beginning of the hearing that it was his

opinion that jurisdiction was in Utah until jurisdiction could be transferred to Washington. Commissioner Gaddis also indicated, however, that if there were a likelihood of continued litigation, it was best to have the litigation in one forum. Commissioner Gaddis stated:

...If it is likely that there is going to be ongoing litigation after that point, there is certain value of having everything happen -- well, there is always a value of having it happen in one forum, and ordinarily you want the forum to be in the area where the most witnesses are, where the least financial expense is, and these kind of things would favor a Washington forum...I don't think this family can afford to keep travelling to Utah, and I am persuaded the father cannot afford to keep coming to Washington, hiring Washington counsel and Utah counsel, so I think there is a likelihood of continued litigation here and the forum question really ought to be addressed and I would intend to call the Utah judge to see exactly what is happening there. And I would intend to give each of the attorneys an opportunity to make a presentation before there is any kind of substantive decision on that. But, we have got to keep expenses down -- I mean the poor families are suffering emotionally, as well as financially. I respect that. (Transcript, pp 16-17)

In Commissioner Gaddis' Order Declining Jurisdiction, it should be noted that the reason the Washington Court declined jurisdiction and denied Plaintiff's Motion in Washington for Change of Jurisdiction was that the Utah Court "refused to relinquish jurisdiction" (emphasis added) and the Washington Court felt, pursuant to the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, that it did not have the authority to assume jurisdiction unless or until jurisdiction was released by Utah. In a Clarification Order entered by Commissioner Gaddis, the

Washington Court again stated that it would be willing to entertain jurisdiction should the Utah Court wish to transfer jurisdiction. It should be noted that Plaintiff is not requesting the Utah Court to completely divulge itself of jurisdiction over the entire divorce case. Plaintiff is merely requesting the Utah Court to defer jurisdiction over custody and visitation matters to the Washington Court and allow the Washington Court to entertain any such motions to modify the Decree. Of course, the Washington Court is aware of the proceedings in Utah and is cognizant of the orders previously entered in this matter and can make determinations of future matters taking into account the orders entered in Utah and granting those orders full faith and credit as if they had been originally entered in Washington.

It should also be noted that there is a distinct difference between having jurisdiction and exercising jurisdiction. In the instant action, both Utah and Washington have jurisdiction. However, it is important to determine which of the two Courts should exercise jurisdiction or if jurisdiction can be exercised concurrently. An example is the case of *Etter v. Etter*, 405 A.2d 760 (Ct. of Sp. Ap., 1979). In that case, the Maryland Court was asked to determine custody of a child who had resided in Delaware with his father and had come to Maryland asking to stay in Maryland with his mother. At that time there was no divorce decree and each of the parties had filed for custody. The Maryland Trial Court ruled that both States had jurisdiction over the matter but

that the evidence clearly established that it was for the best interest of the boy involved to be with his mother. Both Maryland and Delaware had adopted the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act and the Maryland Court of Appeals noted that the language in the Act did not divest one court of jurisdiction once jurisdiction had been found in another State. The Act deals with guiding the courts of the two States involved and working out which is the appropriate court to exercise jurisdiction.

The difference between the exercise of jurisdiction and having jurisdiction is also apparent not only from the statutes but on examination of the decision in *Greene v. Greene*, 276 N.W.2d 472 (Mich. App. 1978). Therein the Michigan Court of Appeals pointed out that the two district court judges involved in Texas and Michigan had called and spoken with each other in an effort to determine which State should properly exercise jurisdiction. After they had determined that Michigan should exercise its concurrent jurisdiction to modify the decree, it took evidence and did so. Both the Trial Court and the Appellate Court determined that under those circumstances, applying the same provisions in the UCCJA as raised in this action, the Michigan court properly exercised jurisdiction to determine the case.

Most of the cases interpreting the UCCJA have been incidents where one parent has abducted the children and secreted them from the other parent and then attempted to modify a custody decree of another state months or years

later. Although not directly on point, since in the instant action there has never been an incidence of abduction and all matters of custody and visitation have been handled properly through the Courts, the cases do offer some insight into the intent and purpose of the UCCJA and may be of assistance to this Court in rendering a decision.

For example, in the case *Settle vs. Settle*, 556 P.2d 962 (Or., 1976), the mother was attempting to modify in Oregon a custody decree which was entered in Indiana. The decree was originally entered in the mother's absence after she had left Indiana with the children. However, the action had been commenced prior to the mother's leaving Indiana for Oregon. The trial court had originally allowed jurisdiction and modified the custody decree. The Oregon Appeals Court then overturned the trial court and the Appeals Court was subsequently overturned by the Oregon Supreme Court, reinstating the decision of the trial court that jurisdiction was proper in Oregon.

In determining whether Oregon had jurisdiction to modify the decree, the Supreme Court of Oregon followed a two tiered determination, first determining if jurisdiction were proper in Oregon and then determining if jurisdiction should be maintained by Oregon. As noted by the Court, the two main factors for determining jurisdiction as mentioned in the UCCJA are: (1) If the state is the home state of the children at the time of commencement of the action, or (2) If it is in

the best interest of the child that the court assumes jurisdiction because the child and at least one contestant have a significant connection with the state and there is available in the state potential evidence concerning the child's present or future care, protection, training, and personal relationships.

The Oregon Court determined that the necessary thresholds had been met to establish jurisdiction since the children had been in Oregon for at least six (6) consecutive months prior to the commencement of the proceedings and hence, Oregon was the children's home state. In determining whether the Court should exercise its jurisdiction, the Court noted, in reference to the second tier of the test, the "significant connection test" that:

One parent [the father] certainly has a significant connection with Indiana, and there is available there substantial evidence concerning the children's relationship with that parent and, thus, the future care, protection, training, and personal relationships if they are to be returned to Indiana. However, at the time of the hearing by the trial court the children had no significant connection with Indiana because of the length of time they had been away. In the lives of children four and eight years of age, eighteen months is a long time. 556 P.2d at 966.

It should be noted that in the instant action, the children had resided in Washington almost two years by the time of hearing held on May 21, 1986.

The Oregon Supreme Court also reviewed the Commissioner's Note, 9 Uniform Laws Annotated 107, 108, Section 3 (Master Ed.

1973), dealing with the UCCJA which contained the following:

Paragraph (2) [the significant connection test] perhaps more than any other provision of the Act requires that it be interpreted in the spirit of the legislative purposes expressed in section 1. The paragraph was phrased in general terms in order to be flexible enough to cover many fact situations too diverse to lend themselves to exact description. But its purpose is to limit jurisdiction rather than proliferate it. The first clause of the paragraph is important: Jurisdiction exists only if it is in the child's interest, not merely the interest or convenience of the feuding parties, to determine custody in the particular state. The interest of the child is served when the forum has optimum access to relevant evidence of the child and family. There must be maximum rather than minimum contact with the State. The submission of the parties to a forum, perhaps for purposes of divorce, is not sufficient without additional factors establishing closer ties with the State. Divorce jurisdiction does not necessarily include custody jurisdiction. See Clark, Domestic Relations 578 (1968) (emphasis in original) 556 P.2d at 966.

The Supreme Court of Oregon concluded that the significant connection test, which includes an examination of the best interests of the children, was one of the most important factors in determining whether Oregon should exercise its jurisdiction. The Court also noted that the Commissioners Note comment indicated that the requirement of the availability of "substantial evidence" should be understood to require optimum access to relevant evidence. The Court determined that since the children had been in Oregon for eighteen months, Indiana no longer had optimum access to relevant evidence.

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