1986

Wendy Marie Christensen Rawlings v. Mark Douglas Weiner : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. Having heard the original divorce of the parties in 1982 and several orders to show cause prior to the Order to Show Cause filed in October, 1985, which is the subject of this appeal, the First District Court had continuing jurisdiction of this case.

2. Where Mark Weiner has never moved from the state and the children continue to have significant contacts with Utah and substantial evidence concerning their interests is available in Utah, the requirements of Utah UCCJA and FPKPA are fully satisfied. Being fully satisfied, the First District Court properly exercised its continuing jurisdiction in this case.

3. Whether or not to retain jurisdiction was in the discretion of the First District Court. There being no abuse of that discretion, the First District Court should be affirmed on this appeal.

ARGUMENT

Wendy Rawlings' cross-appeal in this case claims the trial court had no jurisdiction to enter the October 21, 1986 Order on Order to Show Cause. Wendy Rawlings did not appeal the substance of the decision.

To argue the jurisdiction issue requires a step-by-step analysis. The analysis necessarily includes a discussion of the trial court's basic jurisdictional authority in this case, the effect of the Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act (hereinafter "Utah UCCJA") and the Federal Parental Kidnapping Prevention Act (hereinafter "FPKPA") on the trial court's authority, and the trial court's exercise of discretion relative to jurisdiction in this case. In short, did the trial court have jurisdiction and was the trial court authorized to exercise that jurisdiction.

I

THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF BOX ELDER COUNTY,
STATE OF UTAH, HAD JURISDICTION TO SIGN AND
ENTER THE ORDER ON ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE IN THIS
CASE.

On September 27, 1982, the Amended Decree of Divorce between Wendy Rawlings and Mark Weiner was filed. The Amended Decree provided that custody of the parties' five small

children go to Wendy Rawlings, with carefully outlined visitation to Mark Weiner.

Before and after the filing of the Amended Decree, Mark Weiner has sought the aid of the court in compelling Wendy Rawlings to honor the visitation order and allow the children and their father their visitation time together.

Having heard and decided the divorce of the parties, the First District Court has "continuing jurisdiction to make such subsequent changes or new orders with respect to ... the custody of the children and their support, maintenance, and health and dental care ... as shall be reasonable and necessary." Section 30-3-5 Utah Code Ann. (1953 as amended). Numerous subsequent orders were made in this case by the trial court, including the Order on Order to Show Cause entered October 21, 1986, all of which were entered under the First District Court's continuing jurisdiction.

II

THE TRIAL COURT'S EXERCISE OF JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE UTAH UCCJA AND FPKPA.

In October, 1985, the trial court signed an Order to Show Cause pursuant to a Motion and Affidavit filed by Mark Weiner. The Order to Show Cause sought modification of the Amended Decree and/or enforcement of the numerous previous orders of the trial court relative to visitation, the proper surname of the children, visitation expenses and so on.

In November, 1985, Wendy Rawlings filed a motion in Washington State seeking to have Mark Weiner's Order to Show Cause heard in Washington. Pursuant to Wendy Rawlings' request, Washington Court Commissioner, Stephen M. Gaddis, spoke on the phone with District Judge Omer J. Call.

Both Commissioner Gaddis in his Order Declining Jurisdiction and Judge Call in his Statement and Order acknowledge the continual exercise of jurisdiction in this case by the First District Court beginning with the filing of the divorce complaint filed by Wendy Rawlings in 1981. (Record, pages 70-71 and 26-28 respectively.) Commissioner Gaddis' order acknowledges Mark Weiner's continued residence in this state. Judge Call's order points out Wendy Rawlings' failure to keep Mark Weiner informed of the children's whereabouts and phone number. Both orders clearly confirm the First District Court's continuing jurisdiction in this case and the intent of both courts that the First District Court has exclusive jurisdiction concerning custody and visitation.

Every procedure mandated and envisioned by the Utah UCCJA was correctly followed in this case.

The first provisions of the Utah UCCJA which should be considered in this case are Sections 78-45c-13 and 14. Section 78-45c-13 requires the "recognition and enforcement of foreign decrees." Section 78-45c-14 sets out the prerequisites for modification of a foreign decree. Commissioner Gaddis correctly concluded in his order declining

custody, pursuant to Section 78-45c-14(1)(a) "that the court which rendered the decree (First District Court) does ... now have jurisdiction under jurisdictional prerequisites substantially in accordance with this act ... (and did not decline) to assume jurisdiction to modify the decree"

To determine what is meant by the first provision of Section 78-45c-14(1)(a), it is necessary to review the Commissioner's notes, other portions of UCCJA, and applicable case law. The Commissioner's note to Section 13 of the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act (hereinafter the "UCCJA") (virtually identical to Section 78-45c-13) states:

This section and sections 14 and 15 are the key provisions which guarantee a great measure of security and stability of environment to the "interstate child" by discouraging relitigations in other states. See Section 1

"Jurisdiction" or "jurisdictional standards" under this section refers to the requirements of section 3 in the case of initial decrees and to the requirements of sections 3 and 14 in the case of modification decrees. The section leaves open the possibility of discretionary recognition of custody decrees of other states beyond the enumerated situations of mandatory acceptance.

9 U.Laws Annot. (1979 ed.) Section 13, page 151.

Section 1 of UCCJA (virtually identical to Section 78-45c-1) states the general purposes of the UCCJA. (Section 78-45c-1 is reproduced in the "statutes" section of this brief.) The general purposes of the Utah UCCJA were met by the trial court retaining jurisdiction in this case because "jurisdictional competition and conflict" with Washington was

avoided, cooperation with the Washington court was promoted, litigation over custody and visitation took place in the state where the children have significant contacts with their father, maternal grandparents, numerous aunts and cousins, and counselors and psychologists, continuing controversies involving custody and visitation and continued attempts to forum-shop and relitigate custody and visitation was discouraged.

The "jurisdictional standards" referred to in the Commissioner's notes on Section 13 are more fully discussed in the Commissioner's note on Section 14:

Courts which render a custody decree normally retain continuing jurisdiction to modify the decree under local law. Courts in other states have in the past often assumed jurisdiction to modify the out-of-state decree themselves without regard to the preexisting jurisdiction of the other state. *** In order to achieve greater stability of custody arrangements and avoid forum shopping, subsection (a) declares that other states will defer to the continuing jurisdiction of the court of another state as long as that state has jurisdiction under the standards of this Act. In other words, all petitions for modification are to be addressed to the prior state if that state has sufficient contact with the case to satisfy section 3. The fact that the court had previously considered the case may be one factor favoring its continued jurisdiction. If, however, all the persons involved have moved away or the contact with the state has otherwise become slight, modification jurisdiction would shift elsewhere.

The First District Court has continuing jurisdiction under Section 30-3-5. The First District Court exercised that jurisdiction nearly continuously since Wendy Rawlings filed

the complaint in 1981. Though Wendy Rawlings moved with her new husband and the children out of Box Elder County, Mark Weiner still resides in Box Elder County, exercises much of his rather extensive visitation in Box Elder County, the maternal grandparents reside in Box Elder County, counselors to the children and parties work and reside in Utah. The children's contacts with this state continues to be significant, and were certainly so in 1985-86 at the time the order to show cause was brought, heard, and decided.

The Commissioner's note refers to Section 3. The statutory cite in the Utah UCCJA is Section 78-45c-3. Section 78-45c-3(1)(b) provides that the court has jurisdiction in a modification petition in child custody matters if it is in the child's best interest by virtue of the child and one of the contesting parties having "a significant connection with this state" and "there is available in this state substantial evidence concerning the child's present or future care, protection, training, and personal relationships." Section 78-45c-3(2) and (3) makes clear that physical presence of the child is not the sole determining factor under Section 78-45c-3(1)(b).

Section 78-45c-8 provides that a court may decline jurisdiction if a petitioner does not have "clean hands." Section 78-45c-8(2) provides: "If the petitioner has violated any other provision of a custody decree of another state the court may decline to exercise its jurisdiction if this is just

and proper under the circumstances." There are several expressions of concern by the trial court for the well being of the children in light of Wendy Rawlings' conduct. Specifically, the various orders on orders to show cause and notations thereon, the Statement and Order, and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order on Order to Show Cause appealed from to this Court.

The FPKPA (which is essentially the last word on full faith and credit of custody orders in this country) requires that full faith and credit be given to a custody order made by a state which "has jurisdiction under the law of such state" (28 U.S.C.S. Section 1738A(c)(1)), the state has continuing jurisdiction (Section 1738A(E)) and the state "remains the residence of the child or any contestant" (Section 1738A(d)).

Again, under Section 30-3-5, the First District Court has continuing jurisdiction. Mark Weiner continues to reside in this state. Where those two elements are present, under FPKPA, Judge Call's Order on Order to Show Cause is entitled to full faith and credit.

FPKPA goes even further than requiring full faith and credit to a sister state's order. FPKPA also restricts the right of a sister state to modify the decree between the parties in this case until Mark Weiner moves and the First Judicial District otherwise loses jurisdiction of the case through the loss of all significant contacts with the children.

There are several well-considered cases which support the above analysis:

In State Ex Rel. Cooper v. Hamilton, 688 S.W.2d (Tenn. 1985), the parties were divorced in 1980 by an Indiana court. The parties and the children had lived in Indiana many years. The day after the divorce the mother moved to Tennessee. Shortly after the divorce the father moved the Indiana court for modification of the decree relative to custody of the child in the mother's care. The mother later moved the Tennessee court for modification of the decree relative to the visitation of the Indiana decree. The Tennessee judge took jurisdiction of both the father's and mother's petitions.

On appeal, the Supreme Court of Tennessee held that though Tennessee was the "home State" of the child under the Tennessee version of UCCJA," the fact that a state is or has become a 'home state' does not, in and of itself, give that state authority to pre-empt the authority of other states." 688 S.W.2d at 824. Relying on Tennessee's equivalent to Utah's Section 78-45c-14(1), the Commissioner's notes to Section 14, quoted above, and Steele v. Steele, 250 Ga.101, 296 S.E.2d 570 (1982), the Court concluded:

There can be no question but that the intention of the drafters of the Uniform Act was to give priority to the original rendering state, and not to other states, so long as at least one of the contestants to the original action remained in that state, and the state otherwise retained jurisdiction.

688 S.W.2d at 825.

The Supreme Court of Tennessee then quoted extensively from a law review article by Brigitte M. Bodenheimer, the Reporter who aided in the preparation of the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act. Bodenheimer "The Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act: A Legislative Remedy for Children Caught in the Conflict of Laws," 22 Vand.L.Rev. 1207 (1969). Of particular interest is an example quoted from the article:

A typical example is the case of the couple who are divorced in state A, their matrimonial home state, and whose children are awarded to the wife, subject to visitation rights of the husband. Wife and children move to state B, with or without permission of the court to remove the children. State A has continuing jurisdiction and the courts in state B may not hear the wife's petition to make her the sole custodian, eliminate visitation rights, or make any other modification of the decree, even though state B has in the meantime become the 'home state' under section 3. The jurisdiction of state A continues and is exclusive as long as the husband lives in state A unless he loses contact with the children, for example, by not using his visitation privileges for three years. Bodenheimer, op.cit.supra at 1237.

688 S.W.2d at 826.

After citing the FPKPA, the Supreme Court of Tennessee held in the case that until Indiana declined jurisdiction, "primary jurisdiction to modify the Indiana decree remains with the Indiana courts, not with the Tennessee courts, even though this has become the 'home state' of the child whose custody is involved." Ibid.

In Kumar v. Superior Court of Santa Clara County, 32 Cal.3d 689, 186 Cal.Rptr. 772, 652 P.2d 1003 (1982), the Supreme Court of California held that the California courts

could not modify a New York decree unless New York declined to exercise jurisdiction. In that case, the parties were divorced in New York in 1974. The parties continued to live in New York until 1979 when the mother, who had custody, moved with the child to California. In 1980, the father filed in New York for modification of the decree. Shortly thereafter, the mother petitioned a California court for modification.

In a lengthy, scholarly, and very helpful opinion, the California court cites sections from its version of UCCJA, Commissioners Notes, also quoted at length herein, three of Reporter Bodenheimer's law review articles on UCCJA, including the quote from the Vanderbilt Law Review, and FPKPA. Acknowledging California to be the "home state," the California court nevertheless ruled that the child and child's father had significant contacts with New York and there was substantial evidence concerning the child in New York. In support of its decision, the California court noted that: The child was born and lived in New York until moving to California; the divorce and initial custody decree were rendered by New York; the child had continued contact with his father who continued to live in New York; "maternal grandparents and other relations, neighbors and friends live in New York;" and there was evidence the mother left with the child for California without providing an address or phone number to the father or making arrangements for visitation by the father with the child. 652 P.2d at 1004-5.

The above facts are nearly identical to the facts in this case.

The Supreme Court of California held that "... California has no authority to modify the New York decree so long as that state has jurisdiction and does not decline to exercise it" The First District Court of Utah had jurisdiction to enter the Order on Order to Show Cause and did not relinquish its jurisdiction to do so.

In Cotter and Woods, 64 Or.App. 173, 666 P.2d 1382 (Or.App. 1983), the Oregon courts refused to modify a California decree even though Oregon was the "home state." Subsequent to the California divorce, the father filed for modification of the decree in California and later obtained an order of joint custody of the child with the physical custody to the mother and specific visitation to the father. The mother moved to Oregon between the time the modification petition was filed and decided. Approximately 7 to 8 months later, the mother petitioned an Oregon court to modify the California decree.

The Court of Appeals of Oregon, citing Oregon's version of UCCJA, ruled that though Oregon was the "home state," California still had jurisdiction where one of the contestants was still living in California and there was a "'substantial connection' between the child, father and California."

Again, Mark Weiner still resides in Utah and the substantial connection between the children, Mark Weiner, and Utah continues.

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